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VI. Sanction

Where, as here, the Government has
met the burden of showing that
Registrant’s continued registration is
inconsistent with the public interest, the
burden shifts to Registrant to show why
it can be entrusted with a registration.
Morall, 412 F.3d. at 174; Jones Total
Health Care Pharmacy, LLC v. Drug
Enf't Admin., 881 F.3d 823, 830 (11th
Cir. 2018); Garrett Howard Smith, M.D.,
83 FR 18882, 18904 (2018). The issue of
trust is necessarily a fact-dependent
determination based on the
circumstances presented by the
individual registrant. Jeffrey Stein, M.D.,
84 FR 46968, 46972 (2019); see also
Jones Total Health Care Pharmacy, 881
F.3d at 833. Moreover, as past
performance is the best predictor of
future performance, the Agency requires
that a registrant that has committed acts
inconsistent with the public interest
accept responsibility for those acts and
demonstrate that it will not engage in
future misconduct. See Jones Total
Health Care Pharmacy, 881 F.3d at 833;
ALRA Labs, Inc. v. Drug Enf’t Admin.,
54 F.3d 450, 452 (7th Cir. 1995). The
Agency requires a registrant’s
unequivocal acceptance of
responsibility. Janet S. Pettyjohn, D.O.,
89 FR 82639, 82641 (2024); Mohammed
Asgar, M.D., 83 FR 29569, 29573 (2018);
see also Jones Total Health Care
Pharmacy, 881 F.3d at 830-31. In
addition, a registrant’s candor during
the investigation and hearing is an
important factor in determining
acceptance of responsibility and the
appropriate sanction. See Jones Total
Health Care Pharmacy, 881 F.3d at 830—
31; Hoxie, 419 F.3d at 483—84. Further,
the Agency considers the egregiousness
and extent of the misconduct as
significant factors in determining the
appropriate sanction. See Jones Total
Health Care Pharmacy, 881 F.3d at 834
& n.4. The Agency also considers the
need to deter similar acts by a registrant
and by the community of registrants.
Jeffrey Stein, M.D., 84 FR at 46972-73.

Here, Registrant did not timely or
properly request a hearing and was
deemed to be in default. 21 CFR
1301.43(c)(1), (e), (H)(1); RFAA, at 1-2.
To date, Registrant has not filed a
motion with the Office of the
Administrator to excuse the default. 21
CFR 1301.43(c)(1). Registrant has thus
failed to answer the allegations
contained in the OSC and has not
otherwise availed itself of the
opportunity to refute the Government’s
case. As such, Registrant has made no
representations as to its future
compliance with the CSA nor made any
demonstration that it can be entrusted

with registration. Moreover, the
evidence presented by the Government
shows that Registrant violated the CSA,
further indicating that Registrant cannot
be entrusted.

Accordingly, the Agency will order
the revocation of Registrant’s
registration.

Order

Pursuant to 28 CFR 0.100(b) and the
authority vested in me by 21 U.S.C.
824(a) and 21 U.S.C. 823(g)(1), I hereby
revoke DEA Certificate of Registration
No. FJ1928689 issued to Just Here II
Pharmacy. Further, pursuant to 28 CFR
0.100(b) and the authority vested in me
by 21 U.S.C. 824(a) and 21 U.S.C.
823(g)(1), I hereby deny any pending
applications of Just Here II Pharmacy to
renew or modify the named
registrations, as well as any other
pending application of Just Here
Pharmacy for additional registration in
Pennsylvania. This Order is effective
August 13, 2025.

Signing Authority

This document of the Drug
Enforcement Administration was signed
on July 8, 2025, by Acting Administrator
Robert J. Murphy. That document with
the original signature and date is
maintained by DEA. For administrative
purposes only, and in compliance with
requirements of the Office of the Federal
Register, the undersigned DEA Federal
Register Liaison Officer has been
authorized to sign and submit the
document in electronic format for
publication, as an official document of
DEA. This administrative process in no
way alters the legal effect of this
document upon publication in the
Federal Register.

Heather Achbach,

Federal Register Liaison Officer, Drug
Enforcement Administration.

[FR Doc. 2025-13122 Filed 7—11-25; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410-09-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Mine Safety and Health Administration

Petition for Modification of Application
of Existing Mandatory Safety
Standards

AGENCY: Mine Safety and Health
Administration, Labor.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: This notice is a summary of
a petition for modification submitted to
the Mine Safety and Health
Administration (MSHA) by Nyrstar

Tennessee Mines—Strawberry Plains,
LLC.

DATES: All comments on the petition
must be received by MSHA'’s Office of
Standards, Regulations, and Variances
on or before August 13, 2025.

ADDRESSES: You may submit comments
identified by Docket No. MSHA—-2025—
0069 by any of the following methods:

1. Federal eRulemaking Portal:
https://www.regulations.gov. Follow the
instructions for submitting comments
for MSHA-2025-0069.

2. Fax: 202—693-9441.

3. Email: petitioncomments@dol.gov.

4. Regular Mail or Hand Delivery:
MSHA, Office of Standards,
Regulations, and Variances, Room
C3522, 200 Constitution Ave NW,
Washington, DC 20210.

Attention: Jessica D. Senk, Acting
Director, Office of Standards,
Regulations, and Variances. Persons
delivering documents are required to
check in at the receptionist’s desk.
Individuals may inspect copies of the
petition and comments during normal
business hours at the address listed
above. Before visiting MSHA in person,
call 202-693-9455 to make an
appointment.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Jessica D. Senk, Office of Standards,
Regulations, and Variances at 202—693—
9440 (voice), Petitionsformodification@
dol.gov (email), or 202—693-9441 (fax).
[These are not toll-free numbers.]

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Section
101(c) of the Federal Mine Safety and
Health Act of 1977 and Title 30 of the
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part
44 govern the application, processing,
and disposition of petitions for
modification.

I. Background

Section 101(c) of the Federal Mine
Safety and Health Act of 1977 (Mine
Act) allows the mine operator or
representative of miners to file a
petition to modify the application of any
mandatory safety standard to a coal or
other mine if the Secretary of Labor
determines that:

1. An alternative method of achieving
the result of such standard exists which
will at all times guarantee no less than
the same measure of protection afforded
the miners of such mine by such
standard; or

2. The application of such standard to
such mine will result in a diminution of
safety to the miners in such mine.

In addition, sections 44.10 and 44.11
of 30 CFR establish the requirements for
filing petitions for modification.
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II. Petition for Modification

Docket Number: M—2025-001-M.

Petitioner: Nyrstar Tennessee Mines—
Strawberry Plains, LLC, 2421 W Old
Andrew Johnson Hwy., Strawberry
Plains, TN 37871.

Mine: Immel Mine, MSHA ID No. 40—
00170, located in Knox County,
Tennessee.

Regulation Affected: 30 CFR
57.19073, Hoisting during shift changes.

Modification Request: The petitioner
requests a modification of 30 CFR
57.19073 to allow use of the currently
installed hoisting system at the mine to
transport both materials and miners in
the same shaft during shift changes.

The petitioner states that:

(a) On November 13, 2024, MSHA
informed the operator that the Agency
would begin issuing citations regarding
use of the hoist at the Immel Mine.
MSHA stated that the citations would be
based on a violation of 30 CFR 57.19073
for miners being transported in the cage
while materials were on the skip
because the compartments and dumping
bins are not partitioned to prevent
spillage into the cage compartment.

(b) The hoist is a single drum friction
hoist powered by a 900 HP GE motor.
The Canadian Ingersoll-Rand original
serial number is 1832-B.

(c) The shaft is circular, unlined, has
a 23-foot diameter, and is 1,642 feet
deep.

(d) The shaft has three main
compartments, constructed with steel
sets, with one conveyance in each
compartment. The three compartments
are: an ore skip, a small personnel cage,
and a larger service and personnel cage.

(e) The standard does not require that
there be a particular type of partitions
between the compartments.

(f) The larger service and personnel
cage is partitioned from the ore skip
because it is fully covered and in a
separate part of the shaft.

(g) The ore skip is counterbalanced by
the larger service and personnel cage
which has counterweights affixed to it.

(h) The ore skip has a capacity of
approximately 14 tons. It is never filled
to the brim, is enclosed by a door with
latches, filled below its tonnage rating
(generally loaded 2 tons less than its
capacity), and is only above the larger
service and personnel cage for a small
portion of the shaft.

(i) The shaft also has three auxiliary
compartments, adjacent to the three
main compartments, which are used for
mine services—compressed air, water,
and electricity.

(j) The petitioner and its predecessors
have operated the hoist, as designed,
since 1972.

(k) The petitioner has implemented a
temporary workaround in which only
six miners can be loaded on the large
service and personnel cage while the ore
skip remains unloaded to avoid an
insufficient counterweight for the ore
skip.

(1) The current use of the hoist (as
described under the alternative method)
provides an equivalent degree of safety
as that afforded by the standard.

(m) Keeping the ore skip empty and
manually removing counterweights each
time personnel need to ride in the large
cage would result in a diminution of
safety. The process of removing the
counterweights is time-consuming,
dangerous, and creates additional
opportunity for risk and human error.

The petitioner proposes the following
alternative method:

(a) The lead-zinc ore shall be
unloaded into the hoist to be
transported to the surface.

(b) The larger service and personnel
cage shall serve as the counterweight
during operation of the ore skip to
transport the ore from production levels
to the surface.

(c) As part of the counterweight
function, weights shall be affixed to the
bottom of the larger service and
personnel cage.

(d) The ore skip shall not be filled to
the brim and shall dump away from the
larger service and personnel cage.

There is no representative of miners at
the Immel Mine. A copy of the petition
for modification was posted on the mine
bulletin board on May 16, 2025.

The petitioner asserts that the
alternative method proposed will at all
times guarantee no less than the same
measure of protection afforded to the
miners under the mandatory standard.

Jessica D. Senk,

Acting Director, Office of Standards,
Regulations, and Variances.

[FR Doc. 2025-13037 Filed 7-11-25; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4520-43-P

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND
BUDGET

Cumulative Report of Rescissions
Proposals Pursuant to the
Congressional Budget and
Impoundment Control Act of 1974

AGENCY: Office of Management and
Budget, Executive Office of the
President.

ACTION: Notice of monthly cumulative
report pursuant to the Congressional
Budget and Impoundment Control Act
of 1974.

SUMMARY: Pursuant to the Congressional
Budget and Impoundment Control Act
of 1974, OMB is issuing a monthly
cumulative report (for July 2025) from
the Director detailing the status of
rescission proposals that were
previously transmitted to the Congress
on June 3, 2025.

DATES: Release Date: July 9, 2025

ADDRESSES: The July 2025 cumulative
report is available on-line on the OMB
website at: https://www.whitehouse.gov/
omb/information-resources/legislative/
supplementals-amendments-and-
releases/.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Jason Hoffman, 252 Eisenhower
Executive Office Building, Washington,
DC 20503, Email address:
Jason.M.Hoffman@omb.eop.gov,
telephone number: (202) 456—1414.
Because of delays in the receipt of
regular mail related to security
screening, respondents are encouraged
to use electronic communications.

Russell T. Vought,
Director.

[FR Doc. 2025-13115 Filed 7-11-25; 8:45 am|
BILLING CODE 3110-01-P

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

Notice of Intent To Seek Approval To
Renew an Information Collection

AGENCY: National Science Foundation.

ACTION: Notice and request for
comments.

SUMMARY: NSF is announcing plans to
request renewed clearance of this
collection. In accordance with the
requirements of the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995, we are providing
the opportunity for public comment on
this action. After obtaining and
considering public comment, NSF will
prepare the submission requesting OMB
clearance of this collection for no longer
than 3 years.

DATES: Written comments on this notice
must be received by September 12,
2025, to be assured consideration.
Comments received after that date will
be considered to the extent practicable.
Send comments to address below.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Suzanne H. Plimpton, Reports Clearance
Officer, National Science Foundation,
2415 Eisenhower Avenue, Alexandria,
Virginia 22314; telephone (703) 292—
7556; or send email to splimpto@
nsf.gov. Individuals who use a
telecommunications device for the deaf
(TDD) may call the Federal Information
Relay Service (FIRS) at 1-800-877—
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